Public Document Pack

Aoend %%sﬁmw
genaa Fr—

Standards Committee

Date: Thursday, 22 October 2015
Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre

To: Councillors Taylor (Chair), D Fouweather, J Guy, H Thomas, Hancock, John and
Westwood

Item Wards Affected

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 16 July 2015 (Pages 3 - 6)

4 Chair's Announcements

To receive any announcements the Chair wishes to make.

5 Ombudsman Annual Letter 2014/15 (Pages 7 - 18)

6 Ombudsman Facts Sheet - Code of Conduct Complaints (Pages 19 -
24)

7 Standards Committee Report - Forward Work Programme (Pages 25
-52)

Contact: Anne Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01633 656656

E-mail: anne.jenkins@newport.gov.uk

Date of Issue: 16 October 2015



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Mi %’%!’i‘i‘é’bﬁﬁ"“
inutes T

Standards Committee

Date: 16 July 2015
Time: 5.30pm
Present: Mrs H Taylor OBE (Chair), Mr J Pickering, Mr G Hancock, Mr B John, Ms T

Britton and Mr P Westwood

Mr G Price (Monitoring Officer) and Mrs M Durkin (Democratic

Administrator)

Apologies: Councillors H Thomas and J Guy

Apologies for Absence

Apologies received are noted above.

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Chairs Announcements

The Chair, Mrs H Taylor referred to the recent inauguration of the new Mayor,
Councillor H Thomas and the Committee wished their congratulations to him to be
recorded in the Minutes.

Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 March, 2015 were submitted.

Re Minute 6, Response to Wales Audit Office Review on Whistleblowing, the
Monitoring Officer reported that the Employee Partnership Forum (EPF) had
considered the proposed changes to the Whistleblowing Policy at its meeting on 19
March, 2015 and agreed it without amendment. This would now be published on the
Council’s Intraweb.

Agreed

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 March, 2015 be taken as read and
confirmed.

Complaints

The Monitoring Officer reported that there had been no further complaints received
since the last meeting.

Agreed

Page 3



That the report be noted.

Register of Gifts and Hospitality

Consideration was given to a report on the current arrangements for the acceptance
and registration of gifts and hospitality by Officers and Members and to review the
current financial limits for registration.

As part of the Forward Work Programme, Standards Committee had agreed to carry
out a review of the current arrangements for registration of gifts and hospitality by
Officers and Members, to review the current financial threshold for registration of
member gifts and hospitality and to consider whether any further guidance was
required.

The statutory Code of Conduct for Local Government Employees (which currently
excluded fire-fighters and teachers) provided that all employees must comply with any
rules of their relevant Authority on the declaration by employees on hospitality or gifts
offered to or received by them from any person or organisation doing or seeking to do
business or otherwise benefiting or seeking to benefit from a relationship with the
Authority. Qualifying employees must not accept benefits from a third party unless
authorised to do so by their relevant Authority.

Quialifying employees of relevant Authorities must also ensure that they used public

funds entrusted to them in a responsible and lawful manner, and must not utilise

property, vehicles or other facilities of the Authority for personal use unless authorised
to do so.

Section 14 of the Council’'s Employee Code of Conduct detailed all the requirements in
this respect.

The Employees Register of Gifts and Hospitality and the Members’ register were both
open to public inspection. There was no specified financial limit for the registration of
Officers’ gifts and hospitality but the Council had previously specified a de minimis level
of £80 for the registration of Members’ gifts and hospitality. Gifts and hospitality valued
at less than £80 did not need to be registered, although this did not mean that anything
of less value should be accepted.

The Employee Code of Conduct provided more guidance for Officers in relation to the
acceptance of gifts and hospitality. It was being suggested that Standards Committee
could consider that there would be benefit in the Council adopting a similar protocol to
provide further guidance and advice for Members, to supplement the provisions in the
Code of Conduct. A draft Protocol was also considered.

In response to a question the Monitoring Officer confirmed that School Governing
Bodies were responsible for agreeing procedures for the registration of lists of Gifts and
Hospitality as far as Teachers and other school employees were concerned.

Members gave detailed consideration to all aspects of this matter and, in particular, the
gifts and hospitality threshold for Members as detailed in the Appendix referring to
Welsh Local Authorities and the South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, all of whom
had thresholds of far lesser amounts than the current value of £80 for Newport which
had been agreed by this Committee in 2005. The Monitoring Officer referred members
to the Appendix of the report which detailed Officers Gifts and Hospitality which only
referred to Corporate Service areas despite all Service Areas being asked to supply

Page 4



information. There should be similar registers of gifts and hospitality to those retained
in Corporate Services.

Agreed

1. That Standards Committee concerns regarding the lack of responses from non
Corporate Service area be noted and they be further requested to provide information
on Gifts and Hospitality.

2. That School Governing Bodies be requested to review their practice regarding Gifts
and Hospitality, if necessary, to reflect that adopted by the Council.

3. That the threshold of £80 for Members to register gifts and hospitality be reduced to
£25.

4. That Committee members be requested to further consider the proposed protocol for
Members Gifts and Hospitality and submit comments to Officers by 31 August, 2015 (to
enable the agreed Protocol to be submitted to Council in September, 2015).

Procedure for Dealing with Complaints of Breaches of the Members’ Code of
Conduct

Arising from discussion at the last meeting, the Monitoring Officer circulated papers
relating to a “mock hearing”. He also reported that a short summary/flow chart on the
procedure would be added to the current Procedure document for members’ ease of
reference. The Monitoring Officer proposed that any members ‘questions on this matter
be considered at the next meeting.

Agreed
That the report be noted
Local Democracy (Wales) Act 2013 (Commencement No 2) Order 2015

Consideration was given to a report detailing the changes introduced by the Local
Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 with effect from 1 May, 2015. The Report
set out the legislative changes introduced by the Local Government (Democracy)
(Wales) Act 2013 which were brought into effect by Commencement Order No.2 as
from 1 May 2015. Of particular relevance to Standards Committee were the changes to
the requirements for community councils to maintain the statutory register of members’
interests. This duty was now devolved to the Proper Officer of the Community Council
and there was an obligation to publish the register electronically on the Community
Council website. Further changes had also been introduced to allow for the
establishment of joint Standards Committees and for Regulations to be made to allow
misconduct cases and dispensation applications to be referred to another Local
Authority’s Standards Committee for determination.

In response to a question the Monitoring Officer confirmed the intention to write to all

Community Councils to ensure they were aware of this new legislation and complying
with the changes. Through the Community Councils Charter the Council would assist
with advice etc if required.

The Monitoring Officer also referred to the necessity to await Regulations regarding the
proposed future direction of the referral of Misconduct Cases/Dispensation
Applications.

Agreed

Page 5



10

11

1. To note the report

2. To write to all Community Councils reminding them of the Local Democracy (Wales)
Act 2013 (Commencement No 2) Order 2015 requesting they confirm that they are
implementing the changes. The responses will be considered at the next meeting of
Standards Committee.

Standards Conference Wales

Members considered possible attendance at the Standards Conference Wales 2015
being held in Cardiff on 20 October, 2015.

Agreed

Members are to inform the Democratic Administrator should they be interested in
attending this Conference.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting to be held on Thursday, 22 October, 2015 at 5.30 p.m. in Room 4,
Civic Centre.

Standards Committee Annual Report
Agreed
The Monitoring Officer will circulate a draft Annual Report to members for comment by

31 August, 2015. The agreed Annual Report is to be presented to Council at its
September, 2015 meeting by the Chair.

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

R t %g NEyPorT
epor e

Standards Committee

Part 1
Date: 22" October 2015
Item No: 5

Subject Ombudsman Annual Letter 2014/15

Purpose To report the Ombudsman’s Annual letter and the numbers of complaints of
maladministration and misconduct dealt with during 2014/15

Author Head of Law and Regulation

Ward General

Summary Following the publication of his Annual Report for 2014/15, the Ombudsman has now
issued the Council with his Annual letter, which sets out information relating to the

numbers of complaints of maladministration and misconduct which were referred to his
office during this period relating to Newport City Council and its Councillors

Proposal To note the Report and the Ombudsman’s Annual letter.

Action by Head of Law and Regulation

Timetable Immediate

Page 7



Background

1.

10.

Following the publication of his Annual Report for 2014/15, the Ombudsman has now issued the
Council with his Annual letter, which sets out information relating to the numbers of complaints of
maladministration and misconduct which were referred to his office during this period relating to
Newport City Council and its Councillors

A copy of the information attached to the Annual letter is set out in the Appendix to this Report.

In general, there has been a stark increase in the numbers of complaints and enquiries referred
to the Ombudsman’s office compared with the previous year, with a 75 increase overall in the
numbers of public body complaints. Traditionally, local authorities have generated the largest
numbers of complaints and the last year has seen a 55 increase.

Housing and Planning are consistently the largest areas of complaint generally, although
Newport no longer has any housing management related complaints following the housing stock
transfer to Newport City Homes. The data for 2014/15 shows a notable increase in complaints
about Complaint-handling, Environmental Health, Finance and Taxation.

However, the Ombudsman has issued fewer maladministration reports against local authorities in
2014/15, which indicates that many more complaints are now being settled and resolved locally.
Only 1 Public sector Interest report was issued against a Welsh council in the last 12 months.
This Report identified failings in the way in which that authority investigated concerns about the
welfare of the complainant’s daughter. The report also identified a poor process for complaint-
handling within the authority.

In relation to Newport City Council, there was a notable increase in the number of complaints of
maladministration in 2014/15. This had increased from 22 complaints in 13/14 to 40 complaints
in 204/15 (see Fig A), but these figures are still below the Welsh average.

The largest single area of complaint is Planning and Building Control and complaints relating to
the administration of Housing and Council tax benefits are above the national average.

However, there were no findings of maladministration against the Council and no public interest
reports issued in 2014/15.

The Annual letter refers to one “Quick Fix and Voluntary Settlement” relating to a bin store, which
was resolved by the Council providing a separate area for storage of the bins in order to reduce
nuisance.

Three complaints of misconduct were referred to the Ombudsman during 2014/15, one of which
was carried forward from the previous year. In all cases, a decision was taken not to accept the
complaint for investigation.

Financial Summary

11.

There are no financial implications.

Options Available

5.

To note the Report

Comments of Chief Financial Officer

6.

There are no financial implications.

Page 8



Comments of Monitoring Officer

7 Included in the Report.

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change
8 There are no staffing or policy implications.

Background Papers

Ombudsman’s Annual Report and letter 2014/15.

Dated: 16" October 2015

Page 9



¥

Appendix

Explanatory Notes

Section A compares the number of complaints against the Council which were
received by my office during 2014/15, with the Local Authority average (adjusted for
population distribution) during the same period.

Section B provides a breakdown of the number of compiaints about the Council
which were received by my office during 2014/15. Section C compares the number
of complaints against the Council which were received by my office during 2014/15,
with the Local Authority average for the same period. The figures are broken down
into subject categories.

Section D provides the number of complaints against the Council which were taken
into investigation by my office during 2014/15. Section E compares the number of
complaints taken into investigation with the Local Authority average (adjusted for
population distribution) during the same period.

Section F compares the compiaint outcomes for the Council during 2014/15, with the
average outcome (adjusted for population distribution) during the same period.
Pubiic Interest reports issued under section 16 of the Public Services Ombudsman
(Waies) Act 2005 are recorded as 'Section 16'.

Section G compares the Council's response times during 2014/15 with the average
response times for all Local Authorities, and all public bodies in Wales during the
same period. This graph measures the time between the date my office issued an
‘investigation commencement’ letter, and the date my office receives a full response
to that letter from the public body.

Section H provides a breakdown of all Code of Conduct compiaints received against
Councillors during 2014/15. Finally, Section ‘I’ contains the summaries of all reports
issued in relation to the Council during 2014/15.

Housing Stock

As with previous exercises, the figures for 2014/15 have not been adjusted to take
account of the transfer of housing stock. However, it is noted that there is likely to be
a higher proportion of Housing complaints where Local Authorities have retained
their housing stock.

Feedback
We welcome your feedback on the enclosed information, including suggestions for

any information to be enclosed in future annual summaries. Any feedback or queries
should be sent to james.merrifield@ombudsman-wales.org. uk.

3
Page 10



A: Comparison of complaints received by my office with average, adjusted
for population distribution

100 -

L = Newport ™ LA average

2014-2015 2013-2014

B: Complaints received by my office

Subject 2014/15 2013/14
Adult Social Services 5 4
Benefits Administration 6 2
Children’s Social Services 6 4
Complaint-handling 0 1
Education 7 3

Environment and

Environmentai Health 2 0
Housing 2 2
Planning and building controi 10 3
Roads and Transport 1 0
Various Other 1 3
Total 40 22

Pafe 11



yijeay ains|
{0J3u03 {e3udwuosAUg pue uoneanas
Modsuea} Supng uoexe] pue Bujpuey 'SOHPE  SIMAJIAS [BIIOS UOHENSIUIIPY  S3NAJRS

. Jayjosnoep  puespeoy pueSuuueld  SuisnoH pueadueud juswuosAul  uonednpl  sedwoy  AguRwWWo)  SuBIPIYD siyauag [e10S }npy

i

it & = : =X ; - i . ] TS e
. g M. ml P o T o1 1 0 - e
il
= 9
6
afesane v 1 yodman =
yLIELOT
yyeay
uﬁ._o%:ﬂh joRuod Suipyng |EluatuuoAUg SIINITS uopensIuIWpY S3IAIBS
JAYI0 snouep pue speoy pue Sujuue|d Suisnoy pue JUSLILOJAUT uonelnp3 [ePOS S,UaJplY) sjyauag |e0s 3npy
— — iﬂq..] Y = A SR 0
" g m =T T S E ™
m m v
¥ 7 4 s
g B 9 9 ot
0T Orf !
18
i a%esone yvim vodman = o
ST
SO

; abeioae v 1pm AloGayeo 3oafgns Aq spujejdwos jo uosyedwon o)



D: Complaints taken into investigation by my office

E: Comparison of complaints taken into investigation by my office with
average, adjusted for population distribution

2014/15

2013/14

into investigation

_{ Number of complaints taken |

§==

= Newport

2014-2015

Page 13

m LA average

“

2013-2014



UMBIPYIM

[l = td]

T

0

UMEIPAUM

r——

0

0

UOHRIDPISUOD |
yed uj 1o ajoym u) - JuaWRplas (enl saye .

PIRYdn - Woday ;syig  Aseunjop /x4 YPIND panupuodsig Pasop sases Jayln, ainjewaud uonIPsun{ jo Inp

— - —
g ¢ £ L g |
9 i
ot
T L
b1 1

aBesaneyvin HodmaN m

ved \yio ued ujlo Wiatuspas uo1e1PISUQI
playdnion ajouymut- pydnajoym ul - poydn  Adejunjop (e[}u] JaYye pasop
-Hoday impQ - poday sayio - 9T uoRIas FER nllie) panunuolsig Sa5ed JaYi0),
+ . E i b e i
¢ 0 1 9 0 o T 1]
£
afesane ym Modmen =

TS
oz
1 4714 Xird
uon|pstn| m
ainjewsasd JoIn0
S0
. T : t
) s :
9 L
: 01
LT
a ¥V )
oz
SLiVLOZ

uognquysip uogendod Joj pajsnipe ‘sawioano abeioAe ypm sewoayno jujejduios Jo uosueduion i

Page 14



G: Comparison of Council times for responding to requests for information
with average LA and average All Wales response times, 2014/15 (%)
; m Newport

75 ¥ LA Average

11 Average All Wajes response

time 50 50
50 - 45
27
25
17
12
8
4 3 .
01 |
.u . _.___.F--._._..._.,.-E:!._ R L Eml hgeed |
<1week 1to2weeks2to3 weeks3to4weeks4to5 weeks 5to 6 weeks Overb
weeks
H: Code of Conduct complaints

m -

B L

m 2014-2015 m2013-2014

b

‘ -

2 3

0
.ﬂ.. Ot oL =
Discontinued

Page 15



I: Summaries
Various Other
Quick fixes and Voiuntary settlements

Newport City Councii — Other misc.

Case reference 201405411 — December 2014

Mr & Mrs S complained that the Council had failed to deal with a complaint they
made to it regarding the wheelie bins of neighbours in a narrow street being stored
against the side wall of their home. This caused a nuisance with noise and
unpleasant odours.

The Council had carried out a consuitation exercise with their neighbours who were
content to maintain the status quo. Mr & Mrs S were unhappy as the storage issues
only affected them.

There was an area at the side of Mr & Mrs S’s home that could possibly be used by
the Council to store the bins further away from the property, thus reducing the
likelihood of nuisance being caused to them. The Ombudsman therefore
recommended that the Council provide a clearly marked area for the storage of the
wheelie bins, six foot away from the property. The Council also agreed to provide
larger bins, which can be shared between two households. The Council agreed to
complete the work by a specified date.

9
Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Code of Conduct
complaints: Factsheet for pmbudsman

member interviewees

This factsheet explains the approach taken by the Ombudsman’s staff when carrying out
interviews with elected members who are subject to investigation under the Code of
Conduct Complaints procedure.

The nature and format of the interview L)\

Interviews will generally be conducted face-to-face, although in exceptional circumstances
you may be asked to provide written answers to a series of written questions.

The Investigator will digitally record the interview to ensure that your evidence is accurately
recorded. You should be prepared to answer any questions put to you. You will also be
given the opportunity to make comments you feel are relevant to the investigation and
which you consider the Ombudsman should take account of when reaching his
determination on the complaint.

It would be helpful if you could Iidentify any concerns that you have or identify any
witnesses who you feel should be contacted during the course of the investigation so that
these can be promptly resolved. Failure to comply with any request made by the
Investigator to attend an interview in connection with an investigation may amount to a
breach of the Code.

The Ombudsman appreciates that interviews may sometimes cause anxiety. You are
therefore welcome to have someone with you when you see the investigating officer. You
may attend with a legal representative or have somebody else present for support. If you
wish to have somebody present at the interview to support you, please let the Investigator
know who this person will be in good time. It should not be someone who is involved in
the investigation; they are allowed to be present simply to offer you support and not to
answer questions for you. Interviews will always be on the record.

What you will need for the interview K_)\

Make sure that you understand what the interview is about. You should have been given
details of the complaint which sets out what the Ombudsman is investigating and copies of
relevant evidence gathered. If you have any papers - such as letters or diaries or the
formal file to which the complaint relates - which you think might be relevant to the
interview, take them with you. If you have any notes you made at the time of the events
under investigation, these may help the Investigator.

In addition to relevant documents, you should ensure that you have with you any other
items which you might need during the course of the interview, such as reading glasses,
hearing aids or medication (inhalers etc.). You should also ensure that, unless absolutely
necessary, any mobile phones or tablet devices are tumed off for the duration of the
interview and that your colleagues are aware that you should not be disturbed.

Please notify the Investigator before the interview of any special requirements you may
have, including any arising from any of the protected characteristics defined by the Equality

Version 1.0/ July 2015
Page 19



Act 2010 (as arﬁended) e.g. any disability or religious considerations. You will be given the
opportunity also to conduct your interview in Welsh if you would like to do so. _

Although the Investigator will have a timetable and will try to keep to it, sometimes
interviews overrun so you should ensure that this Is taken into account when planning
anything immediately after the scheduled conclusion of the interview.

Issues to bear in mind k__,,’\

The Investigator may also take handwritten notes of the interview and may ask you to sign
and date these at the end of the interview. At the end of the interview the digital recorder
will produce two compact discs, one disc will be sealed for evidential purposes and the
other will be used by the Investigator as a working version of the recording. You will be
asked to sign the sealed version as verification of the interview and given a notice
explaining how you can request a copy of the disc.

As soon as reasonably possible after the interview, the Investigator will send you a typed
transcript of the interview. This transcript will be used to form the basis of your evidence.

You should bear in mind that all comments made during the interview may be attached to
any report on the Investigation which the Ombudsman may refer to the Council's Standards
Committee, or to the President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales.

Further information kJ\

The information provided to you in advance or during your interview should be held in
strictest confidence. '

Disclosure of details relating to an investigation should not be disclosed to anyone other
than a legal or other adviser. If the information is disclosed to other persons disclosure
may amount to a breach of paragraphs 5(a) and 7(a) of the Code. In addition you should
not discuss the evidence you intend to provide at interview or contained within any witness
statement with persons who may be involved in the investigation, whether directly or
indirectly, as such contact may be construed as similar breaches of the Code.

If you would like more information about this process,
please contact us:

« phone 0300 790 0203;
e e-mail ask@ombudsman-wales.org, uk;

s visit the website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk;

e follow us on Twitter: @CmbudsmanWales;

s write ta: The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 SL)

Version 1.0/ July 2015
Page 20



Factsheet for Local

Authority Members:
What we do when we pmbUdsman

get a complaint about
your conduct

This factsheet explains what happens when the Ombudsman receives a complaint about the
conduct or behaviour of members and co-opted members of local authorities, community
councils, fire & rescue authorities and national park authorities in Wales. It does not cover

every detall of our procedures, which are avallable at www.ombudsman-wales.org,uk.

New Complaints k_zk

All new complaints are considered by the Ombudsman'’s Complaints Advice Team, who will
acknowledge receipt of the complaint and notify you, the Monitoring Officer of your
authority and/or the Clerk of your Community Council (if appropriate) of its existence. A
copy of the complaint will also be provided.

You need not respond to this letter if you do not wish to. However if you consider that
specific information should be considered by the Ombudsman as part of his Initial
consideration of this matter please let us know. If you decide to respond or provide any
information you should bear in mind that your comments may also be disclosed to the
complainant, or used in any subsequent proceedings.

Each complaint, and any supporting information, will then be examined against a two stage
test. At the first stage, we will consider whether there is direct evidence that a breach of
the Code of Conduct has occurred. At the second stage we consider whether an
investigation or a referral to a standards committee or the Adjudication Panel for Wales is
required in the public interest. This involves the consideration of a number of public
interest factors such as: whether you have deliberately sought a personal gain at the public
expense for yourself or others, misused a position of trust, whether an investigation is
required to maintain public confidence in elected members or whether an investigation is
proportionate in the circumstances, We will aim to tell you within four weeks whether or
not the Ombudsman intends to investigate the complaint.

If we cannot accept the complaint K_,k

If a complaint does not meet the requirements of the two stage test, you will be provided
with a copy of the explanation in writing.

If we decide to investigate the complaint

!

If we decide to investigate the complaint it will be conducted by one of the Ombudsman’s
investigators. We will always write to you and the parties to the complaint confirming our
decision to investigate, again you do not need to respond if you do not wish to. However it
would be helpful if you could identify any concerns that you may have during the course of
the investigation so that these may be promptly resolved.

Investigations are generally conducted in private, Disclosure of details relating to an
investigation may amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct. You are therefore advised
not to discuss the complaint with anyone (including potential witnesses) other than your
legal or other adviser to avoid any prejudice to the investigation. If there are witnesses who
you think should be contacted you should advise the Investigator as soon as possible.

Version 1.0/ July 2015
Page 21



Where a request (which identifies you by name) is received from the media or a third party
for information relating to an investigation, confirmation of the existence of an investigation
only will be given.

The Investigator will usually obtain further relevant documentary and witness evidence.
Each Investigation varies and while it may be necessary to interview those involved, some
cases may be concluded through examination of documents alone. We aim to complete all
investigations within 12 months but most are concluded sooner. If, for any reason, we
consider it necessary to discontinue our investigation, we will write to you explaining this
decision.

When all reasonable enquiries are completed the Investigator will review the evidence
gathered and decide whether it is supportive of a breach of the Code. If so, copies of the
relevant evidence gathered will be sent to you together with an invitation to attend an
interview. Interviews will be recorded and will usually be conducted face-to-face, although
in exceptional circumstances you may be asked to answer a series of written questions.
Detailed information about the interview process can be found in our factsheet ‘Factsheet
for Member Interviewees',

At the interview you should be prepared to answer any questions put to you. You will also
be given the opportunity to make comments you feel are relevant to the investigation. You
may attend with a legal representative or have somebody else present for support should
you choose to do so, so long as they are independent of the matters investigated. Failure
to comply with any request made by the Investigator in connection with an investigation
may amount to a breach of the Code for elected members.

When we have all the information required, we will write a report or letter setting out the
evidence we have considered and the conclusions we have reached.

' Investigation outcomes

If we conclude there is no evidence to suggest that a breach the Code of Conduct has
occurred, we will close the investigation and provide written reasons for this decision to al!
parties to the complaint.

If, having reviewed the evidence, it is suggestive that a breach of the Code has occurred;
the Ombudsman may determine in some circumstances that no further action is
appropriate. Again written reasons for this decision will be sent to all parties.

Where the Ombudsman finds that a complaint Is justified and it is also considered to be in
the public interest to do so, he may refer it either to the Standards Committee of the
relevant authority, or to a tribunal convened by the Adjudication Panel for Wales to make a
determination on the issues. You will however be given the opportunity to comment on
draft version of the report within a set timescale. Any comments made will be given due
consideration before the report is finalised and may be incorporated into the final report.

A copy of the Ombudsman’s final report will be sent to you. The complainant will be
notified of the Ombudsman’s conclusions, and a summary of the report will be provided by
way of information. The final report will not be disclosed by the Ombudsman until such
time as a determination is made on the issues by the Standards Committee or tribunal.

Version 1.0/ July 2015
Page 22



If the complainant is dissatisfied with our decision

Once we have issued a decision, not to investigate a complaint or to close an investigation
or that no further action is appropriate, our task is effectively ended and the file is closed.
We will not re-open a case solely because the complainant disagrees with our decision.
However you should be aware that a complainant can ask (within twenty working days) for
us to review the complaint. If a review request s received we will notify you and provide a
copy of any request received.

If you would like more information about this process,
please contact us:

» phone 0300 790 0203,
« e-iaill ask@ombudsman-wales.org. uk;

« visit the website at www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk;

» follow us on Twitter: @OmbucsmanWales;

» wnte to: The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5L)

Version 1.0/ July 2015
Page 23



Page 24



Agenda Item 7

R Sg NEvpoRT
eporl FrEE—

Standards Committee

Part 1
Date: 22" October 2015
ltem No: 7

Subject  Future Work Programme
Purpose To agree the Forward Work programme for Standards Committee
Author Head of Law and Regulation

Ward General

Summary The Standards Committee Annual Report for 2014/15 was received by full Council
meeting on 29" September 2015.

The Annual Report contained a draft Forward Work programme for the next 12 months.
Standards Committee are asked to approve the Work Programme, identify any further
items of work that should be included and to prioritise specific items for review.

Proposal To agree the Forward Work programme and prioritise specific items for review

Action by Head of Law and Regulation

Timetable Immediate

Page 25



Background

1.

The Standards Committee Annual Report for 2014/15 was received by full Council meeting on
29™ September 2015.

The Annual Report contained the following draft Forward Work programme for the next 12

months.
Date Topic Information
September Annual Report to Council Review of work undertaken in the past 12
months, identifying any specific ethical
standards issues facing the Council and
priorities for the forthcoming year.
Summary of numbers of complaints
received and outcomes.
As and when Dispensations Granting individual and blanket
applications dispensations to Councillors.
received

Review annually

Reviewing decisions annually to identify
common issues and consistency of
approach.

Produce guidance to Members on any
issues arising.

As and when
required

Local Resolution Protocol
complaints

Conducting hearings into any Stage 3
complaints by Members or Officers

Monthly

Complaints of Misconduct

Update of numbers of complaints received
and outcomes.

Update on complaints resolved through
Local Resolution Protocal.

By September
2016

Member training and
development

Carry out review of member training, re-
assessing the need for refresher training in
the light of any changes in legislation,
guidance and Code of Conduct. Arrange
and deliver any necessary refresher training

Annually

Ethical standards audit

Check that statutory registers are being
properly maintained procedures for
declarations are being followed

Annually

Review of community
councils

Check that statutory registers are being
properly maintained procedures for
declarations are being followed

Engage with community councils to ensure
compliance and to identify any training and
development needs.

Page 26




By September Review of Council (a) Member /Officer relations
2016 Protocols
(b) Planning Protocol
How they are implemented,
communicated to staff, training and
compliance monitoring.
On-going Review of Council Policies (a) Bullying and Harassment.
and procedures relating to
ethical standards (b) Grievance and complaints policies.
(c) Ethical Procurement policy
How they are implemented and
communicated, monitor compliance.
By September Succession Planning for Advertise and recruit new
2016 new independent independent members of
members of Standards Committee.
Committee
Deliver training and induction.

3. Standards Committee are asked to approve the Work Programme, identify any further items of
work that should be included and to prioritise specific items for review.

Financial Summary

4, There are no financial implications.
Options Available

5. To note the Report

Comments of Chief Financial Officer

6. There are no financial implications.
Comments of Monitoring Officer

7 Included in the Report.

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change
8 There are no staffing or policy implications.
Background Papers

Standards Committee Annual Report 2014/2015.

Dated: 16™ October 2015

Page 27



S
Newport

CITY COUNCIL

CYNGOR DINAS

Casnewydd

Standards Committee
Annual Report
2014-15

Page 28



Foreword by the Chair

| am pleased to present the second Annual Report of the Standards Committee for 2014/15. Last year,
as part of the forward work programme, we decided that it would be helpful and appropriate to publish an
annual report to provide information to the Council about the work carried out by the Committee during
the previous 12 months and to identify any specific issues that have arisen.

This second Annual Report covers the period from August 2014 to July 2015 and follows on from the first
report presented to Council last October.

The Standards Committee is committed to promoting high standards of ethical conduct among elected
Members and officers in order to maintain public confidence in local government.

We are pleased to report that, once again, no serious complaints of misconduct were referred to the
Standards Committee by the Ombudsman during the past 12 months and no complaints were raised
under the Local Resolution Protocol. The Council’s proud record of never having any complaints upheld
and sanctions imposed against individual Members has again been upheld, and long may this continue.

However, as | mentioned last year, there is no room for complacency and it is essential that these
standards are maintained. The Standards Committee will be proactively reviewing all ethical standards
policies and procedures as part of the forward work programme and will be re-assessing the need for all
Councillors to undertake refresher training, in the light of proposed changes to the ethical standards
framework in Wales and the Members Code of Conduct.

To assist Members in meeting their obligations under the Code of Conduct, the Committee has produced
a Protocol for the Registration of Gifts and Hospitality. This is intended to provide general advice and
assistance to Members in connection with the acceptance and registration of gifts and hospitality. The
Committee has also recommended that the threshold for the registration of gifts and hospitality should be
reduced from £80 to £25 in line with most other Welsh local authorities.

There have been no changes to the membership of the Standards Committee during last year although,
as part of the forward work plan for the next 12 months, we will need to consider succession planning for
those independent members whose second terms of office are due to end next September.

| would like to take this opportunity to mention Rob Bailey, our Democratic Services Officer, who retired
recently after many years’ service with Newport and Gwent and to record the Committee’s appreciation
of all his hard work and support.

Finally, I would like to thank all Members of the Committee and Council officers for their advice and
support throughout the last 12 months.

Hazel Taylor OBE
Chair of Standards Committee

1. Introduction
1.1 Terms of Reference

The Local Government Act 2000 Part Il requires the Council to establish a Standards Committee to
carry out the following statutory functions:-

(@) Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by councillors, co-opted members and
church and parent governor representatives;

(b) Assisting the councillors, co-opted members and church and parent governor representatives to
observe the Members' Code of Conduct;

(c) Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members' Code of Conduct;

Page 29



(d) Monitoring the operation of the Members' Code of Conduct;

(e) Advising, training or arranging to train councillors, co-opted members and church and parent
governor representatives on matters relating to the Members' Code of Conduct;

() Granting dispensations to councillors, co-opted members and church and parent governor
representatives from requirements relating to interests set out in the Members' Code of Conduct;

(9) Dealing with any reports from the Monitoring Officer and hearing any complaints of misconduct or
breaches of the Members’ Code of Conduct referred by the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales and determining appropriate action, including the impaosition of any sanctions;

(h) The exercise of (a) to (g) above in relation to the community councils and the members of those
community councils.

Standards Committee also carries out the following additional functions, making recommendations to the
Council, as appropriate:-

(i) The hearing and determination of “low level” complaints of misconduct at Stage 3 of the Local
Resolution Protocol;

(i) Providing advice to the Council on the Council's Codes of Practice, including the Officers' Code
of Conduct and the Whistle Blowing policy;

(iif) Monitoring and updating the Codes of Practice as required; and

(iv) Overseeing the Council's confidential complaints procedure;

1.2 Structure and Membership

The composition and membership of the Standards Committee is prescribed by the Standards
Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 (as amended).
The Standards Committee comprises:-

Five Independent Members (persons who have no connection with the local authority)
Hazel Taylor OBE (Chair)

John Pickering (Vice Chair)

Phillip Westwood

Bernard John

Tracey Britton

Three councillor representatives:-

e Councillor Herbie Thomas
e Councillor John Guy
e Councillor David Fouweather

One community council representative (nominated by the community councils for the area):-
e Gerard Hancock (Langstone Community Council)

The independent members serve a term of office of 4 years, although they are eligible to serve two
consecutive terms of office. The Councillors are appointed annually by the Council at the AGM and
replacement members can be appointed, as necessary, at any time. The community council
representative continues as a member of the Committee until his term of office ends or he ceases to be
a community councillor, or until he is replaced by another nominee.

Page 30



1.3 Enforcement of the Members Code of Conduct

The Council’s Monitoring Officer is Gareth Price, the Head of Law & Standards, and the Deputy
Monitoring Officer is Juliet Owen, the Chief Legal Officer.

The Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer are responsible for:-
e advising Standards Committee on law and procedure,
e ensuring compliance with statutory requirements (Registers of Members interest etc.)
¢ resolution of “low-level” complaints under Stage 2 of the Local Resolution Protocol
e investigation of complaints referred by the Ombudsman

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“Ombudsman”) is responsible for:-

e considering all formal complaints of breaches of the Members Code of Conduct and applying a
two stage test of (1) prima facie evidence of misconduct and (2) whether the breach is so serious
as to warrant any sanction

¢ investigating and reporting (where appropriate) any serious breaches of the Code to the
Standards Committee or a Case Tribunal of the Adjudication Panel for Wales

The Adjudication Panel for Wales:-
e Case Tribunals hear serious misconduct cases referred by the Ombudsman
¢ Interim Case Tribunals can suspend Councillors for up to 6 months pending investigation of
serious complaints
e Determine appeals against Standards Committee decisions or sanctions
e Can suspend Councillors for up to 1 year or disqualify for up to 5 years

The Standards Committee
e Conduct hearings and determine complaints referred to them by the Ombudsman and the
Monitoring Officer
e Can censure or suspend Councillors for up to 6 months

2. The Committee’s work in 2013/14

The Standards Committee is required to meet at least once annually in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2000. In practice, the Committee meets on a scheduled quarterly basis and additional
special meetings are arranged, as necessary, to deal with specific matters such as misconduct hearings
and requests for dispensation.

Three members are required at attend for a quorum at meetings (including the independent Chair or Vice
Chair) and at least half of those present must be independent. The community council representative is
not “independent” for this purpose.

The Standards Committee met on 4 occasions between July 2014 and July 2015:-
23" October 2014

15" January 2015

24" March 2015

16™ July 2015

2.1 Dispensation Applications

Last year, most of the work of the Committee was taken up in determining individual applications for
dispensation under the Members Code of Conduct from Newport City Councillors and local Community
Councillors, in accordance with the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensation) (Wales) Regulations
2001 and Section 81(4) of the Local Government Act 2000.

In total, we considered 13 dispensation applications, most of which involved requests to make financial
contributions to voluntary organisations with which the Councillors had some close personal association

Page 31



or membership. Most of the applications were rejected because of concerns about public perception of
favouritism and, therefore, the Committee identified a number of general principles to assist Members in
dealing with these requests in the future.

This year, we only had to consider one request for dispensation. Again, this was in relation to a request
from a Newport City Councillor to make a £300 donation from her Neighbourhood Allowance to a
voluntary group, of which she was a Committee Member. The Standards Committee refused the
application because the funding was in connection with a social event, rather than for the work of the
organisation, and there was a concern that this could undermine public confidence in the use of public
monies, particularly if the Councillor concerned had attended the social event.

The Committee understands that, as from April 2015, Newport City Council has tightened up the rules on
the use of these Neighbourhood Allowances and that they can now only be used to support voluntary or
community groups where there is a wider public benefit, and not to support private clubs and
organisations. The application forms have also been updated to require Members to identify any
“personal” interest that they or their family and friends may have in the management of the group, and
whether the proposed donation would require special dispensation from Standards Committee.

The tightening up of the rules may account for the significant reduction in dispensation applications
during the past 12 months, but the same general principles will apply and, in particular, the Committee
will still need to be satisfied that the allocation of the funding will not undermine public confidence or give
rise to any perception of favouritism.

2.2 Training

The Standards Committee has always stressed the importance of regular Member training, to ensure
that Councillors keep up to date with the requirements of the Code of Conduct and any changes in the
law or procedures.

It is the responsibility of each individual Councillor to ensure that they fully understand the requirements
of the Code and that they comply fully with their obligations. As always, “ignorance of the law is no
excuse” and a lack of understanding or training would be no mitigation if there is any breach of the Code.
The Committee has previously recommended to the Council that it should be compulsory for all City
Councillors to attend training on the Code of Conduct. The vast majority of Councillors attended ethical
standards training as part of their Induction Programme following the last elections in May 2012. In view
of the changes that have taken place since then and, in the light of proposed changes to the ethical
standards framework in Wales and the Members Code of Conduct, we will be reviewing the need for
updated training as part of our work programme in 2015/16.

Further training was delivered for community councillors and their Clerks in June 2014. The training
requirements of the community councils and their compliance arrangements will continue to be
monitored and reviewed as part of the Committee’s forward work programme.

2.3 Local Resolution Protocol

In accordance with the recommendations of the Minister for Local Government and the Ombudsman, all
councils in Wales were required to adopt an internal procedure for dealing with “low-level”
member/member and officer/member complaints that were not sufficiently serious as to warrant formal
investigation and sanction. We considered a number of different models, but recommended to Council a
protocol where the final determination should be left to the Standards Committee because it was
considered that the independence of the Committee would make the process more open and
transparent. This recommendation was approved by the Council at its AGM in May 2013 and we
subsequently approved the detailed Protocol in July 2013.

It was agreed that the Monitoring Officer would periodically update the Committee on the numbers and
types of complaints determined at officer level under Stages 1 and 2 of the, but maintaining the
anonymity of both the complainant and the Councillor concerned.

Page 32



No complaints under the Local Resolution Protocol were reported in 2014/15.

2.4 Gifts and Hospitality

As part of the Forward Work Programme, Standards Committee carried out a review of the current
arrangements for registration of gifts and hospitality by officers and Members, re-assessed the current
financial threshold for registration of member gifts and hospitality and considered whether any further
guidance was required.

The statutory Code of Conduct for Local Government Employees provides that all employees must
comply with any rules of their relevant Authority on the declaration of hospitality or gifts offered to or
received by them from any person or organisation doing or seeking to do business or otherwise
benefiting or seeking to benefit from a relationship with the Authority. Qualifying employees must not
accept benefits from a third party unless authorised to do so by their relevant Authority. Section 14 of the
Newport City Council’'s Employee Code of Conduct sets out detailed advice and guidance regarding the
acceptance and declaration of gifts and hospitality by officers and this form part of their contracts of
employment.

The Employee Code of conduct also provides that Each Head of Service/Head Teacher must establish
and maintain a register of gifts and hospitality for themselves and the employees under their control,
detailing the nature of the hospitality and indicating whether it has been declined or accepted. All
registers are subject to periodic review by the Head of Law and Regulation. Each employee is
responsible for declaring this information in the appropriate register

The Members Code of Conduct provides that all Councillors must avoid accepting from anyone gifts,
hospitality (other than official hospitality, such as a civic reception or a working lunch authorised by the
Council), material benefits or services for themselves or any person which might place them, or
reasonably appear to place then, under an improper obligation.

Councillors must register any gifts or hospitality above a specified value within 28 days.

The Employees Register of Gifts and Hospitality and the Members register are both open to public
inspection. There is no specified financial limit for the registration of officers’ gifts and hospitality but the
Council has previously specified a de minimis level of £80 for the registration of members’ gifts and
hospitality. Gifts and hospitality valued at less than £80 do not need to be registered, although this does
not mean that anything of less value should be accepted.

We considered the number and types of items registered by officers and members over the past few
years. We were concerned about the lack of detailed information provided by some service areas and
this is a matter that we will be taking up with the relevant Heads of Service. We will also be checking
that School Governing Bodies are maintaining their own registers, for both staff gifts and hospitality and
Governors. But, otherwise, the arrangements made for compiling and publishing these registers
appeared to be satisfactory and fully compliant with statutory requirements.

We also considered the financial limits fixed by other Welsh local authorities for the registration of
Members’ gifts and hospitality. The lowest value was £10 and the highest (apart from Newport) was £50,
with the average being £25. In view of the fact that Newport’s figure of £80 has not been reviewed for
over 10 years and it now appears to be out of step with the other Welsh local authorities, standards
committee is recommending that this should now be reduced to £25 to bring it into line with other
councils.

We would stress that this revised figure of £25.00 is still only relevant when considering whether the gift
or hospitality needs to be registered. It does not mean that Members can accept all gifts or hospitality
worth less than that. Members must consider very carefully whether or not to accept any offer, whatever
its value.

Page 33



We also considered that there would be benefit in the Council adopting a similar protocol to that
contained in the Employee Code of Conduct, to provide further guidance and advice for Members, to
supplement the provisions in the Code of Conduct. Therefore, we have produced a local Protocol for the
Registration of Gifts and Hospitality, a copy of which is attached at Appendix 1. We hope that Councillors
will find this helpful.

2.5 Procedures for dealing with ombudsman complaints and conducting Standards
Committee hearings

Although the Committee have not been called upon to determine any Ombudsman complaints and
conduct any misconduct hearings, we need to be fully prepared for such an eventuality, should the need
arise. This may become even more important if there are changes to the ethical framework in Wales and
the Ombudsman’s role is devolved more to Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees in connection
with the investigation and determination of all misconduct complaints.

Therefore, we have developed a written procedure for dealing with complaints referred by the
Ombudsman and a protocol for conducting misconduct hearings to ensure that the procedures are fully
compliant with the statutory requirements and that any Members who are the subject of misconduct
complaints are given a fair and impartial hearing. A copy of the written Procedure is attached to this

Report at Appendix 2.

We have also considered case studies and “mock” hearing papers, to understand how this procedure is
put into practice and will be reviewing any additional training that may be required to develop the
necessary skills to conduct these proceedings.

2.6 General work

The Committee carried out a review of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy and the Action Plan produced
in response to the Wales Audit Office Report. It was pleasing to note that the revised policy was fully
compliant with changes in legislation and the Public Concern at Work Code of Practice. We were
satisfied with the steps taken by the Council to implement the measures set out in the Action Plan to
address the areas for improvement identified by the Wales Audit Office and the procedures for
communicating this Policy to the staff. There had only been 2 recorded complaints of whistleblowing and
we were assured that this was not due to any lack of awareness about the Policy or the right to
complain, but the nature of the malpractice covered by the Policy. Other complaints and grievances
were dealt with through the Council’s employment policies.

We received updates on the implementation of the Local Democracy (Wales) Act 2013 and, in particular,
the changes to the requirements for community councils to maintain the statutory register of members’
interests. This duty is now devolved to the proper officer of the community council and there is an
obligation to publish the register electronically on the community council website. Further changes have
also been introduced to allow for the establishment of joint Standards Committees and for Regulations to
be made to allow misconduct cases and dispensation applications to be referred to another local
authority’s standards committee for determination.

We will be writing to all of the community council clerks to ensure that proper arrangements are in place
to maintain and publish these registers.

These amendments will require a number of small consequential amendments to the Model Code of
Conduct. However, the Welsh Government is working to bring forward a number of amendments to the
Model Code for consultation later this year.

Standards Committee also considered the Ombudsman’s Annual Report and the Annual report of the
Adjudication Panel for Wales, to identify any specific issues and lessons to be learnt.

Page 34



2.7 Ombudsman complaints

The Ombudsman advises the Monitoring Officer of complaints made against elected members of
Newport City Council and community councillors and the outcome. The Monitoring Officer updates the
Committee at each meeting about the numbers of on-going complaints being referred to and considered
by the Ombudsman’s office. This information is provided on a general basis, without disclosing precise
details of individual complaints, to avoid any issues about pre-determination in case the complaints are
reported to the Standards Committee for determination.

The Committee was advised that 2 complaints were referred to the Ombudsman about City Councillors
in 2014/15. However, neither of these complaints was accepted for investigation on the basis that there
was no evidence of any serious breaches of the Code.

No complaints were referred to Standards Committee in 2014/15 for hearing and determination.

3. Forward Work Programme for 2014/15
Date Topic Information
September Annual Report to Council Review of work undertaken in the past 12

months, identifying any specific ethical
standards issues facing the Council and
priorities for the forthcoming year.

Summary of numbers of complaints received
and outcomes.

As and when
applications
received

Review annually

Dispensations

Granting individual and blanket dispensations to
Councillors.

Reviewing decisions annually to identify
common issues and consistency of approach.

Produce guidance to Members on any issues
arising.

As and when Local Resolution Protocol | Conducting hearings into any Stage 3
required complaints complaints by Members or Officers
Monthly Complaints of Misconduct | Update of numbers of complaints received and

outcomes.

Update on complaints resolved through Local
Resolution Protocol.

By September 2016

Member training and
development

Carry out review of member training, re-
assessing the need for refresher training in the
light of any changes in legislation, guidance and
Code of Conduct. Arrange and deliver any
necessary refresher training

Annually Ethical standards audit Check that statutory registers are being properly
maintained procedures for declarations are
being followed

Annually Review of community Check that statutory registers are being properly

Page 35




councils maintained procedures for declarations are
being followed

Engage with community councils to ensure
compliance and to identify any training and
development needs.

By September 2016 | Review of Council (c) Member /Officer relations
Protocols
(d) Planning Protocol

How they are implemented, communicated to
staff, training and compliance monitoring.

On-going Review of Council Policies |(d) Bullying and Harassment.
and procedures relating to
ethical standards (e) Grievance and complaints policies.

(f) Ethical Procurement policy

How they are implemented and
communicated, monitor compliance.

By September 2016 | Succession Planning for Advertise and recruit new independent members

new independent of Committee.

members of Standards

Committee Deliver training and induction.
4, Helpful Information

4.1 Can | attend Meetings of the Democratic Services Committee?

Yes, all of our meetings are open to the public, except for specific items where personal or confidential
information is likely to be disclosed and the public interest requires that these meetings are conducted in
private, for example hearings into misconduct complaints

Dates of forthcoming meetings, agendas, reports and minutes are available on our own webpage on the
Council website which can be accessed by clicking here: Standards Committee Webpage

4.2 Who do | contact if | want to know more?

If you wish to find out more about the Standards Committee or make a comment or suggestion, please
visit our website: Standards Committee Webpage where you will find an online contact form or email us
at info@newport.gov.uk

Hazel Taylor OBE
Chair of the Standards Committee;

Gareth Price
Head of Law & Regulation and Monitoring Officer

Juliet Owen
Chief Legal Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer

Richard Jefferies
Chief Democratic Services Officer

Page 36


http://www.newport.gov.uk/_dc/index.cfm?fuseaction=democratic.homepage&contentid=CONT125364
http://www.newport.gov.uk/_dc/index.cfm?fuseaction=democratic.homepage&contentid=CONT125364

APPENDIX 1
PROTOCOL FOR MEMBERS ON GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY

1.

11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

Introduction

This Protocol is intended to provide general guidance for Members (and co-opted members) of
the Council in connection with the acceptance and registration of gifts and hospitality. It is not
possible to provide comprehensive and definitive advice in relation to every conceivable scenario,
only general principles and guidelines to assist Members in taking decisions.

If Members have any doubt about whether to accept any specific offers of gifts or hospitality, or
whether there is any need to record such gifts or hospitality in the Register of Members interests,
then they should seek further advice from the Monitoring or Deputy Monitoring Officer. However,
the final decision and responsibility rests with each individual Member.

As an overriding principle, Members should treat with extreme caution any offer of a gift or
hospitality made to them personally in any official capacity or in their role as Councillors or
members of the Council. Members are personally responsible for any decision to accept an offer
of a gift or hospitality, and any inappropriate acceptance of such an offer can give rise to a
serious breach of the Members Code of Conduct and seriously damage the reputation of both the
individual Member concerned and the Council.

The Legal Framework.

Criminal Offences.

Accepting any bribe or any other fee or inducement in return for any favour in connection with
Council business is a criminal offence under the Bribery Act 2010 and the Prevention of
Corruption Acts. An abuse of public trust by anyone holding public office can also constitute an
offence of misconduct in public office. If any Member has received any gift, loan, fee, reward or
advantage from somebody seeking to obtain a contract or any favourable decision from the
Council, then the onus will be on the Member concerned (and the person giving the gift or
reward) to prove that there was no dishonesty involved.

The Members Code of Conduct.

Paragraph 9(b) of the Code provides that:-

"You must - avoid accepting from anyone gifts, hospitality (other than official hospitality, such as
a civic reception or a working lunch duly authorised by your authority), material benefits or
services for yourself or any person which might place you, or reasonably appear to place you,
under an improper obligation."

Paragraph 7(a) provides that:-

"You must not - in your official capacity or otherwise, use or attempt to use your position
improperly to confer on or secure for yourself, or any other person, an advantage or create or
avoid for yourself, or any other person, a disadvantage.”

Paragraph 17 provides that:-

"You must within 28 days of being offered any gift, hospitality, material benefit ~ or advantage
above a value specified in a resolution of your authority, provide written notification to your

authority's Monitoring Officer of the existence and nature of that gift, hospitality, material benefit
or advantage."

Page 37



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

General Principles.

Improper obligation

A gift or hospitality should never be accepted as a reward or inducement to act or vote in a
particular way as a Councillor or as a means of obtaining influence. They should also be refused
where acceptance of the gift or hospitality could give the impression that this would place the
member under any improper obligation.

Benefit to the Council

Gifts or hospitality should only be accepted if there is a clear benefit to the Council (rather than to
Members personally). The benefit should be proportionate to the value of the gift or hospitality.

Any offers which do not have any proper purpose connected with the Council should be refused
(e.g. private holidays, hospitality for purely sporting or social events outside the Council area
where there is no general expectation that the Council should be represented, nor any clear
connection with Council functions).

Public perception

Gifts or hospitality should not be accepted if to do so would leave the Council or the Member
open to accusations of misconduct. Members must not only conduct themselves properly, they
must also avoid any perception of impropriety.

Soliciting a gift or hospitality
Gifts or hospitality should never be sought or invited in connection with a Member’s official role.
Private gifts and hospitality

Members do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to their role as a
Member, such as personal gifts from friends and family.

Gifts

A “gift” includes free goods and services, the opportunity to buy goods/services subject to a
discount or terms which are not available to the public, or the opportunity to buy goods/services
that are not available to the public. It also includes any material benefit or advantage offered to a
Member which is not available to the general public.

Members may accept civic gifts on behalf of the Council and such gifts do not need to be
registered. For example, the Mayor or Leader of the Council may accept commemorative gifts
and items in recognition of events or work that the Council has been involved in, such as twinning
arrangements, civic functions or major projects. Such civic gifts are the property of the Council,
not the individual Member, and must be retained at the Council offices.

Members should not accept personal gifts in connection with their position as a Councillor.
However, Members may accept small and insignificant gifts such pens, diaries etc.

Members should refuse any gift offered to them, or to members of their immediate family, from
any person or organisation doing business or seeking to do business with the Council or applying
to the Council for any decision (e.g. licensing or planning applications or tendering for any
Council contract).

When a gift has to be declined, the offerer should be courteously but firmly informed of the
procedures and standards operating within the Council. If such a gift is delivered:

Page 38



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

* it must be returned immediately to the sender giving reasons for its rejection

+ the acceptance and return of gifts over £25.00 should be registered

« where an offerer insists that a Member accepts the gift, with the agreement of the offerer it
may be donated to the Mayor’s charity or some other suitable charitable purpose.

Hospitality.

It is accepted that events which include hospitality can often be an appropriate and successful
forum for promoting the Council and its aims and objectives, economic, social or otherwise. A
balance therefore needs to be achieved between the aims of promoting the Council and the City
of Newport and the need for Members to be mindful of the perception of others when accepting
hospitality. The following principles should be observed by Members.

Members should never ask for or solicit hospitality at any time.

Members should only accept offers of hospitality if there is a genuine need to impart information
or represent the Council in the event where hospitality is provided. Particular care should be
taken that the level of hospitality provided is proportionate to the nature and importance of any
issues to be discussed at such an event.

Members should avoid hospitality in any situation where they would be the sole guest or where
the offer of hospitality is from anyone doing business or seeking to do business with the Council
or applying to the Council for any decision.

Offers to attend social or sporting functions should only be accepted when there is a legitimate
reason to promote the economic or social wellbeing of the City, and the Monitoring Officer’s
advice should be obtained in respect of any such functions which are outside the Newport area

Where site visits are required as part of the process of making decisions, Members should
ensure that the Council meets the cost of such visits to avoid undermining or compromising the
integrity of subsequent decisions.

Members may accept hospitality through attendance at relevant conferences and courses where
it is clear that the hospitality is corporate rather than personal, and where attendance is an
approved Council duty.

Members may accept normal refreshment in connection with their work as a Councillor (tea,
coffee, biscuits etc.).

Attendance at Civic or other events organised or sponsored by the Council do not need to be
registered, for example, Mayor-making, Civic Sunday, Remembrance Sunday.

If a Member receives hospitality as a representative of an outside body, then the Member
concerned should comply with that organisation’s Protocol on Gifts and Hospitality.

When receiving authorised hospitality, Members should be particularly sensitive as to its timing in
relation to decisions which the Council may betaking affecting those providing the hospitality.

6. Registration

6.1

Under the Council’'s Code of Conduct, a Member must register any gift or hospitality that he/she
receives that is worth more than £25.00. In accordance with the Ombudsman’s Guidance, it is
also good practice to provide a written note of any offers of gifts and hospitality which have been
refused or declined.

Page 39



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

The register of gifts and hospitality register is maintained by the Monitoring Officer who should be
informed in writing of any gift or hospitality received or refused that is worth more than £25.00.
Members should complete and return the attached Form within 28 days of being offered the gift
or hospitality. The register of gifts and hospitality will be available for public inspection.

The figure of £25.00 is only relevant when considering whether the gift or hospitality needs to be
registered. It does not mean that Members can accept all gifts or hospitality worth less than that.
Members must consider very carefully whether or not to accept any offer, whatever its value, in
accordance with the Code of Conduct and the advice contained in this Protocol.

The Ombudsman’s Guidance provides that, if a Member is in any doubt as to the value of any gift
or hospitality, you should err on the side of caution and register it as a matter of good practice, in
accordance with the principles of openness and accountability in public life.

Members may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth. Also, an accumulation of
small gifts received from the same source over a short period of time that add up to more than
£25 should be registered.

The Code of Conduct also refers to any “material benefit or advantage”. The test is whether an
informed independent observer could conclude that a Member might be perceived to be better off
as a consequence of receiving this benefit or advantage.

The Ombudsman’s Guidance also refers to the need to register a separate “personal interest”
under the Code, where a gift or hospitality is offered or received in particular circumstances. If
any matter is under consideration by the Council which is likely to affect the person who gave a
Member any gift or hospitality, then that should be declared and recorded in the register of
members’ interests where that is considered to be a “personal interest” under the Code. If the
interest is also a “prejudicial” one, then the Member should not participate in the Council decision.

Page 40



APPENDIX 2

NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE

PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS OF BREACHES OF THE MEMBERS CODE OF

CONDUCT

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Introduction

This procedure will be followed when the Standards Committee are required to reach a decision
following an investigation by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the Ombudsman”) or
the Council’s Monitoring Officer under Part Il of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local
Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales)
Regulations 2001)(“the Regulations”).

If there is any conflict between this document and any statutory provisions, then the statutory
provisions will prevail.

Statutory Background

In accordance with Section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the 2000 Act”), the
Ombudsman may investigate any alleged breach of the adopted Members Code of Conduct by
elected Councillors or co-opted members of Newport City Council (“the Council”’) or members of
any of the community councils within the Council’'s area (or former councillors or co-opted
members).

Where the Ombudsman ceases such an investigation into allegations that a Councillor or co-
opted member has breached the Code of Conduct before it is completed, he or she may refer the
matters which are the subject of the investigation to the Council’s Monitoring Officer in
accordance with Section 70(4) of the 2000 Act.

Alternatively, the Ombudsman may decide after completing the investigation that there is
evidence of a failure to comply with the Code and that action should be taken in respect of the
matters which are the subject of the investigation. A Report will then be produced on the
outcome of the investigation, which will be sent to the Council’'s Monitoring Officer and the
Standards Committee in accordance with Section 71(2) of the 2000 Act.

In accordance with the Regulations, the Council’s Monitoring Officer is required to:-

(a) investigate matters referred by the Ombudsman under Section 70(4) before reporting and, if
appropriate, making recommendations to the Standards Committee; or

(b) where a matter has been investigated by the Ombudsman and referred under Section
71(2), the Monitoring Officer will consider the Ombudsman’s Report and, if appropriate,
make recommendations to the Standards Committee.

In carrying out an investigation, the Monitoring Officer may follow such procedures as he/she

considers appropriate in the circumstances of the case and, in particular, may:-

(a) make such enquiries of any person as he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of
carrying out the investigation;

(b) require any person to provide him/her with such information, explanation or documents as
he/she considers necessary;

(© require any member or co-opted member or officer of the Council to appear before
him/her for the purposes of (a) and (b) above

Page 41



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

3.1

3.2

In conducting the investigation, the Monitoring Officer may be assisted by any person and may
obtain expert or other advice. In certain cases, expenses may be paid to persons attending or
assisting the Monitoring Officer or providing advice to him/her. The Monitoring Officer may also
appoint or nominate another suitably qualified person to undertake the role of Investigating
Officer where he/she wishes to maintain independence and undertake the Legal Advisor’s role in
advising Standards Committee.

After concluding an investigation, the Monitoring Officer must:-

(a) produce a report on the findings of his/her investigation and, if appropriate, may make
recommendations to the Standards Committee;

(b) send a copy of the report to any person who is the subject of the investigation; and

(© take reasonable steps to send a copy of the report to any person who made any allegation
which gave rise to the investigation.

The Standards Committee must consider a report from the Monitoring Officer on his/her
investigation or a report from the Ombudsman, together with any recommendations of the
Monitoring Officer. The Committee must then make an initial determination that either:-

(a) that there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct; or
(b) that any person who is the subject of the investigation must be given an opportunity to
respond, either orally or in writing.

Where the Standards Committee decides that an opportunity to respond needs to be given
and, after considering any response made by any such person, the Committee  must come to
one of three conclusions:-

(a) there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and no further action
should be taken;

(b) there is evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct but no further action
should be taken; or

(© there is evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and the councillor or co-
opted member should be censured or suspended.

The Standards Committee must take any appropriate action arising from the conclusions it has
drawn

The decision of the Standards Committee is subject to a right of appeal to an Appeals Tribunal
drawn from the Adjudication Panel for Wales.

An Appeals Tribunal may endorse the decision of the Standards Committee, refer a matter back
to it recommending a different sanction, or overturn the decision.

Initial Determination

Following receipt of the Investigating Officer's Report from the Ombudsman or the Monitoring
Officer, the Democratic Services Officer will arrange a meeting of the Standards Committee (or a
sub-Committee if the function has been delegated) as soon as possible.

The Access to Information provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 Part VA and Schedule
12A will apply to the meeting. The agenda papers will need to be sent out at least 3 clear days
before the date of the meeting and would be open to public inspection unless they contained
“exempt information” as defined in Schedule 12A and the public interest in maintaining
confidentiality outweighed the public interest in disclosure. Because the Investigating Officer’s
Report will contain personal information relating to individuals, this will usually be treated as a
confidential Part 2 agenda item and not sent out to anyone other than the members of the
Standards Committee. However, if the Committee decides not to exclude the press and public at

Page 42



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

the meeting, then the agenda and the Report (with any redactions, if necessary) will then be
made public.

The business of the meeting will be confined to considering the Investigating Officer's Report.
Where the Ombudsman has investigated the complaint, the Monitoring Officer will act as Legal
Advisor to the Standards Committee. Where the Monitoring Officer has investigated the
complaint, the Council’'s Deputy Monitoring Officer or some other suitably qualified person, who
has not been involved in the investigation, will advise the Committee.

The Standards Committee shall determine, on the basis of the Investigating Officer’'s Report:

(@) whether there is no evidence of any failure to comply with the Code of Conduct; or

(b) that any person who is the subject of the investigation should be given the opportunity to
make representations, either orally or in writing in respect of the investigation and any
allegation that he/she has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Code of Conduct.

Where the Standards Committee decides that there is no evidence of any failure to comply with
the Code of Conduct, the decision will be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting and written
confirmation of the decision will be sent to the person who is the subject of the investigation, any
person who made any allegation which gave rise to the investigation and the Ombudsman.
Where the proceedings were conducted in private, under Part 2 of the agenda, then the
Investigating Officer’s report and the identity of the individuals involved shall remain confidential.

Where the Standards Committee decides that that any person who is the subject of the
investigation should be given the opportunity to make representations, then the matter will
proceed to a full hearing in accordance with the Procedure for Standards Committee Hearings
(Annex A).

Pre- Hearing Procedure.

The Demaocratic Services Officer will liaise with the Monitoring Officer and the Chairman of
Standards Committee to arrange a provisional date for the full hearing.

The Monitoring Officer or Legal Adviser will write to the person who is the subject of the
investigation with details of the provisional date, time and place of the hearing, an outline of the
procedure to be adopted at the hearing and the person’ rights.

The person who is the subject of the investigation will be required to confirm, in writing, within 14
days of receiving notification of the hearing, whether or not he/she:-

(a) is able to attend the hearing or wishes to request a postponement;
(b) wishes to submit any written representations or wishes to attend the hearing to make oral
representations;

(c) disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the Investigating Officer's Report and, if so, the
reasons for any such disagreement;

(d) intends to be represented at the hearing by a Solicitor, Barrister or any other person;

(e) wishes to call any witnesses to give evidence at the hearing or wishes to submit any
written evidence;

() wants any part of the meeting to be held in private and, if so, the reasons why;

(9) wants any part of the Investigating Officer's Report or other relevant documents to be
treated as confidential and withheld from the public and, if so, the reasons why.

The Investigating Officer shall be advised of the date and time and place of the hearing and
asked whether he/she intends to attend.

Page 43



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The response from the person who is the subject of the investigation will be sent to the
Investigating Officer and he/she will be asked to confirm within 7 days whether he/she:

(a) intends to be represented at the hearing;

(b) wishes to call any witnesses to give evidence at the hearing;

(© wants any part of the meeting to be held in private and, if so, the reasons why;

(d) wants any part of his/her Investigation Report or other relevant documents to be treated
as confidential and withheld from the public and, if so, the reasons why

It should be made clear to all parties that details should be provided beforehand of all the findings
of fact that they intend to challenge and the evidence that they intend to produce.

The Democratic Services Officer and Legal Advisor will write to all members of the Standards
Committee (or members of the sub-Committee if the matter has been delegated) at least 7 days
before the hearing to confirm the date, time and place for the hearing and will send to the
members;

(@ a copy of the Investigating Officer's Report;

(b) any other relevant background documents;

(© the response from the person who is the subject of the investigation;

(d) any further response from the Investigating Officer;

(e) a summary and outline of the allegation, the main facts of the case that have been agreed
and those that have not been agreed;

Q) a list of the witnesses, if any, who will be giving evidence at the hearing;

(9) whether the parties intend to appear and/or be represented at the hearing;

(h) the procedure for the conduct of the hearing.

Depending on the responses from the parties regarding the need for confidentiality, much of this
information will be treated as a confidential and will not sent out to anyone other than the
members of the Standards Committee (or sub-Committee). However, if the Committee decides
not to exclude the press and public for all or part of the hearing then some or all of the documents
(with any redactions, if necessary) will then be made public.

Page 44



ANNEX A

PROCEDURE FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE HEARINGS

1. Interpretation.

In this Procedure, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings assigned to them unless the
context otherwise requires:

1.1 “Committee” means the Standards Committee or any Standards Sub-Committee to which it has
delegated the conduct of the hearing;

1.2 Democratic Services Officer” means the officer of the Council responsible for providing clerical
and administrative support to the Committee, including the recording of decisions.

1.3 “Investigating Officer” means

(@) inthe case of an investigation undertaken under Section 71(2) of the Local Government
act 2000, the Ombudsman or his Investigator who referred the report to the Council and
includes his or her nominated representative.

(b) Inthe case of an investigation referred for local investigation under Section 70(4) of the
Local Government Act 2000, means the Monitoring Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officer or

other investigating officer, and his or he nominated representative.

1.4 “Legal Advisor” means the officer responsible for providing legal advice to the Committee. This
may be the Monitoring Officer, another legally qualified officer of the Council, or someone
appointed for this purpose from outside the Council.

15 “Member” means the elected or co-opted member of the Council (or community council) who is
the subject of the allegation being considered by the Standards Committee, unless stated
otherwise. It also includes the member’s nominated representative.

1.6 “The Monitoring Officer” means the officer for the time being appointed by the Council under
section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and shall include, where appropriate,
the person appointed as Deputy Monitoring Officer.

1.7 “The Chairman” means the person presiding at the hearing;

2. Modification of Procedure.
The Chairman may agree to depart from or vary this Procedure in any particular instance where
he/she is of the opinion that such a variation is necessary in the interests of fairness and
transparency.

3. Representation.
The Member may be represented or accompanied during the meeting by a solicitor, counsel or
(with the permission of the Committee) another person. The costs of any such representation
must be met by the Member, unless Standards Committee has expressly agreed to meet all or

any part of that cost (and subject always to the financial cap on indemnities set by the Council,
from time to time).

Page 45



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Legal advice

The Committee may take legal advice from its Legal Advisor at any time during the hearing or
while they are considering the outcome. The substance of any legal advice given to the
Committee should be shared with the Member and the Investigating Officer if they are present.

Setting the Scene

At the start of the hearing, the Chairman shall introduce each of the members of the Committee,
the Legal Adviser and the Democratic Services Officer and shall invite the Member (if present),
the Investigating Officer (if present) and any other persons in attendance to introduce
themselves.

After all the Committee and everyone involved have been formally introduced, the Chairman will
explain the procedure which the Committee will follow in the conduct of the hearing. The
Committee will conduct the proceedings as informally as possible but will ensure that the Member
is given a fair hearing, according to the rules of natural justice. The hearings will not usually be
recorded and a verbatim note of the proceedings will not be taken, unless there are exceptional
circumstances and good reason to do so.

The hearing will be conducted in English unless the Member expresses a preference to have to
hearing conducted in Welsh and the Committee agrees that it is reasonably practicable to do so.
If a hearing is conducted in Welsh, an instantaneous translation service will be provided for the
Committee and any other persons attending the hearing who request it.

The Member has the right to make representations to the Committee and to be represented by
counsel, a solicitor or any other person. The Member will be entitled to give evidence, call
witnesses, question any witnesses and address the Committee both on the evidence and
generally on the subject matter of the hearing. The right to make representations will not extend
to the person making the complaint, though this may be allowed by the Committee if it is
considered that their attendance would assist the Committee with any matter relevant to the
proper determination of the complaint.

The Committee may limit the number of witnesses called by the Member, where this is conducive
to the efficient and judicial hearing of the case. The circumstances in which the Committee may
impose such a limitation include, for example, where it appears to the Committee that such
witnesses will not be presenting significant new evidence or facts, or where an excessive number
of witnesses are being called by the Member to give character testimony.

Witnesses will not be allowed to sit in the public gallery prior to being called to give evidence
before the Committee and, where the Committee meeting is held in private, they will be required
to leave after giving their evidence. A designated waiting room will be available for witnesses until
they are called.

Evidence before the Committee may be given orally or by written statement. At any stage during
the proceedings the Committee can request the attendance of any person making a written
statement or any other person they consider will be able to assist them, but the Committee has
no power to require the attendance of any person. Members of the Committee can ask questions
of anybody present, at any time. No cross-examination of witnesses will be allowed by the
parties, but questions can be directed through the chair.

The Committee can receive evidence of any fact that appears to it to be relevant even though
such evidence would be inadmissible in proceedings before a court of law. The Committee shall
not refuse to admit any relevant evidence

Any witnesses may be required to give evidence on oath or affirmation, where there are disputes

Page 46



5.10

5.11

5.12

6.

of fact. The Member and the Investigating Officer shall be entitled to request that witnesses be
required to give evidence on oath or affirmation, but the final decision shall rest with the
Committee.

The Public Service Ombudsman for Wales (“‘the Ombudsman”) shall be entitled to attend before
the Committee for the purposes of:

(@) presenting the Investigating Officer's Report and/or explaining any matters in it; and
(b) otherwise playing such part or assisting the Committee as the Committee considers
appropriate.

The Investigating Officer may attend on behalf of the Ombudsman, and the
Ombudsman/Investigating Officer may be represented by Counsel or a solicitor.

The usual procedure to be followed is set out in the following paragraphs, but the Committee is
free to depart from that procedure where it considers it appropriate to do so. The Committee will
decide factual evidence on the balance of probabilities. There will be four possible stages to a
hearing.

Stage 1 — Preliminary procedural issues

The following procedural matters shall be dealt with in the following order:-

6.1.

6.2

6.3

Disclosure of interests.

The Chairman shall ask the members of the Committee to disclose the existence and nature of
any personal and/or prejudicial interests that they may have in the matter and to withdraw from
the consideration of the matter, if so required.

Quorum.

At least 3 members of the Committee must be present at all times during the hearing for the
meeting to be quorate. The 3 members must include a majority of independent members. If the
Committee is dealing with a complaint against a community councillor, then it must include at
least one community councillor representative, but there is no requirement for him/her to actually
attend the meeting for the hearing to be quorate. The Chairman shall confirm that the Committee
is quorate before proceeding with the hearing;

Exclusion of Press and Public

The hearings should generally be conducted in public. The Committee should only exclude the
press and public where “exempt information” within the meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 is likely to be disclosed during the hearings and the public interest in
maintaining confidentiality outweighs the public interest in disclosure. There is a presumption that
the public interest is best served by holding hearings in public unless there are overriding and
compelling reasons to the contrary.

The Chairman shall, in turn, ask the Member, the Investigating Officer and the Legal Adviser
whether they wish to ask the Committee to exclude the press and public from all or part of the
hearing. If any of them so request, they should be invited to put forward their reasons for so doing
and the Chairman shall ask for responses from the others. The Committee shall then resolve, by
majority vote, whether to exclude the press and public from all or any part of the hearing.

Where the agenda papers or any reports have been classified as confidential Part 2 items and

withheld in advance of the meeting, and the Committee does not resolve to exclude the press
and public, the papers should now be provided to the press and public.

Page 47



6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Hearing procedure

The Chairman shall confirm that all present know and understand the procedure which the
Committee will follow in determining the matter.

Proceeding in the absence of any Member.

If the Member fails to attend or is not represented at the hearing, the Committee may:

(@) hear and decide the matter in the absence of the Member, if it is satisfied that the
Member was duly notified of the hearing and that there is no good reason for such
absence or

(b) adjourn the hearing.

Before deciding to hear and determine any matter in the absence of the Member, the Committee
shall consider any written representations submitted by the Member and whether the Member
had indicated that he/she did not intend to attend the hearing.

Where the Member has failed to attend, without good reason and the Committee has decided the
matter in his/her absence, there is no further right of appeal or re-hearing of the matter.

If the Standards Committee is satisfied (after receiving a medical certificate) that any party is
unable, through sickness, to attend the hearing and that the party’s inability is likely to continue
for a long time, the Standards Committee may make such arrangements as may appear best
suited, in all the circumstances of the case, fordisposing fairly of the matter.

Stage 2 - Findings of Fact

After dealing with any preliminary issues, the Committee will next seek to resolve any remaining
disputes of fact that have been identified in the Investigating Officer's Report.

If there is no disagreement about the facts, the Committee can move on to the next Stage 3 of
the hearing.

If there is disagreement, the Ombudsman/Investigating Officer, if present, should be invited to
make any necessary representations to support the relevant findings of fact in the Investigation
Report. With the Committee’s permission, the Ombudsman / Investigator may call any necessary
supporting witnesses to give evidence. The Committee may give the Member an opportunity to
challenge any evidence put forward by any witnesses called by the Ombudsman / Investigating
Officer.

The Member should then have the opportunity to make representations to support his or her
version of the facts and, with the Committee’s permission, to call any witnesses to give evidence.

At any time, the Committee may question any of the people involved or any of the witnesses, and
may allow the Ombudsman/Investigating Officer to challenge any evidence put forward by
witnesses called by the Member.

If the Member disagrees with any relevant fact in the Ombudsman/Investigator’s report, without
having given prior notice of the disagreement, he or she must give good reasons for not
mentioning it before the hearing. If the Ombudsman/ Investigating Officer is not present, the
Committee will consider whether or not it would be in the public interest to continue in his or her
absence. After considering the Member’s explanation for not raising the issue at an earlier stage,
the Committee may then:

Page 48



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

(@ Continue with the hearing, relying on the information in the Ombudsman/Investigating
Officer’s Report;

(b) Allow the Member to make representations about the issue, and invite the
Ombudsman/Investigating Officer to respond and call any witnesses, as necessary; or

(© Postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate witnesses to be present, or for the
Ombudsman/Investigating Officer to be present if he or she is not already.

At the conclusion of the representations as to matters of fact, the Chairman shall ensure that
each member of the Committee is satisfied that he/she has sufficient factual information to
enable him/her to determine whether there has been a failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct, as set out in the Investigating Officer's Report.

The Committee will then adjourn the meeting and retire in private to consider its decision. The
Committee shall reach its decision on the balance of probability based on the evidence which it
has received at the hearing.

The Committee may, at any time, reconvene the meeting in order to seek additional evidence
from the investigating Officer, the Member or any of the witnesses, or to seek advice from the
Monitoring Officer or Legal Advisor. If the Committee requires any further information, it may
adjourn the proceedings pending the production of further evidence.

Once the decision has been reached, the meeting shall be reconvened and the Chairman will
announce the Committee’s findings of facts.

Stage 3 — Did the Member fail to follow the Code?

The Committee will then need to consider whether or not, based on its findings of fact and/or the
facts that have been agreed by the parties, the Member has failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct, on the basis set out in the Investigating Officers’ Report. The function of the Committee
is to make a determination based on the failures to comply with the Code of Conduct set out in
the Investigation Report and any additional or alternative breaches of the Code that may come to
light during the hearing shall not be taken into account in reaching a decision.

The Committee shall invite the Investigating Officer to make representations regarding the
alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct by the Member, as set out in the Investigation Report,
having regard to the findings of fact or agreed facts.

The Member should then be invited to respond to the representations from the Investigating
Officer and give reasons why he or she has not failed to follow the Code of Conduct.

The Committee may, at any time, question anyone involved on any point they raise in their
representations.

The Member should be invited to make any final relevant points.

The Committee will then ask all those present to leave the room and will retire in private to
consider its decision. The Democratic Services Officer and Legal Adviser will remain to take
notes and give legal advice respectively.

Once a decision has been reached and the meeting reconvened, the Chairman will announce the
Committee’s decision as to whether or not the Member has breached the Code of Conduct

If the Committee decides that there is no evidence of any failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct and no further action needs to be taken, the Member will be informed at this point. In
this case, the Committee may also consider whether it should make any general
recommendations to the Council (or community council, as the case may be).

Page 49



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

111

11.2

Stage 4 - If the Member has failed to comply with the Code

If the Committee finds that a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct has occurred, the
Committee will invite the Ombudsman/Investigating Officer whether in his/her opinion the breach
of the Code is such that the Committee should impose any sanction and, if so, what the
appropriate sanction should be.

The Committee will then invite the Member to respond and to make representations as to what
action the Committee should take, including any mitigating factors.

The Committee may question the Ombudsman/Investigating Officer and Member, and take legal
advice, to make sure they have the information they need in order to make an informed decision.

The Committee will then adjourn to and retire in private to consider whether the failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct warrants no action, a censure, or a suspension of the Member, before
announcing its decision.

In coming to its decision, the Committee must determine one of the following:-

(@) That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct but that no action needs
to be taken; or

(b)  That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and should be censured;
or

(c) That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and should be
suspended or partially suspended for a period not exceeding 6 months.

Decision of the Committee.

The decision of the Committee may be taken by a simple majority of votes cast, with the
Chairman having a second and casting vote, in the case of equality of voting. The decision will
record whether it was unanimous or taken by a majority.

Once the Committee has reached a decision, the meeting shall be reconvened and the Chairman
will announce the Committee’s decision. The decision will be recorded in the Minutes of the
meeting by the Democratic Services Officer and the Legal Adviser/Monitoring Officer will, in
consultation with the Chairman, prepare a written record of the Committee’s decision, setting out
the relevant findings of fact and the reasons for the decision.

The Committee may also consider whether or not it should make any recommendations to the
Council (or community council, as the case may be) , with a view to promoting high standards of
conduct among Members.

Where a document refers to evidence that has been heard in private, only a summary of the
document will be entered in the Minutes, with such material omitted as the Committee may direct.

Procedure after the Committee determination.

As soon as possible after the hearing, the written decision of the Committee will be sent to the
Member, the person who made any allegation which gave rise to the investigation (if known) and
the Ombudsman.

If the Committee impose a period of suspension or partial suspension, then that period of
suspension or partial suspension will commence on the day after the expiry of 21 days from
receiving the written notification of the Committee’s determination (in order to allow for any
appeal to the Adjudication Panel for Wales, as set out below). If an appeal is lodged, then any
such sanction, if upheld, will not commence until the day after the final determination of the
appeal process.

Page 50



11.3

11.4

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

14.

13.1

13.2

Within 14 days after the expiry of the time allowed to lodge a notice of appeal (i.e. 14 days after
the 21 day appeal period), or upon receipt of notification of the conclusion of an appeal process,
the Committee must cause to be produced a Report on the outcome of the investigation and
send a copy to the Ombudsman, the Monitoring Officer, the Member and take reasonable steps
to send a copy to any person who made any allegation which gave rise to the investigation.

Upon receipt of the Report of the Committee, the Monitoring Officer must, for a period of 21 days,
publish the Report on the Council web site, make copies available for public inspection and not
later than 7 days after the Report is received from the Committee give public notice, by
advertisement, that copies of the Report are available and specify the date (being a date not
more than 7 days after public notice is first given) from which the period of 21 days will begin. If
the matter involves a Community Councillor, a copy of the Report will be sent to the Clerk of that
Community Council.

Orders for Costs and Expenses

The Committee has no power to make an award of any costs or expenses arising from any of its
proceedings.

Appeals

Where the Committee decides that a Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, the
Member may appeal against the determination to an Appeals Tribunal drawn from the
Adjudication Panel for Wales. The appeal process is in accordance with the Local Government
Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations
2001 as amended.

An appeal must be instigated by giving notice in writing within 21 days of receiving notification of
the Committee’s determination to:

The President,

The Adjudication Panel for Wales,
Welsh Assembly Government,
Cathays Park,

Cardiff

CF10 3NQ

The notice of appeal must specify:

(a) The grounds for appeal; and
(b) Whether or not the person giving notice of appeal consents to the appeal being conducted
by way of written representations.

Referral Back from the Adjudication Panel

In circumstances where there is a referral back to Standards Committee from the Adjudication
Panel for Wales with a recommendation that a different sanction should be imposed, the
Committee shall meet as soon as reasonably practicable to consider the recommendations of the
Appeals Tribunal and shall determine whether to uphold its original determination or accept the
recommendation.

As soon as possible after meeting to reconsider its determination, the written decision of the
Committee will be sent to the Member, the person who made any allegation which gave rise to
the investigation (if known), the Ombudsman and the President of the Adjudication Panel for
Wales.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 16 July 2015
	5 Ombudsman Annual Letter 2014/15
	6 Ombudsman Facts Sheet - Code of Conduct Complaints
	7 Standards Committee Report - Forward Work Programme

